
 
 

  
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2023, NOON 
111 W. Harbor Drive, 2nd Floor, Executive Boardroom 

 San Diego, California 92101  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

AGENDA 
 

Telephone number for members of the public 
to observe, listen, and address the meeting telephonically: 

1(888) 251-2909 – Access code is 6724115#  
  

 
1. Call to Order –  Carlos Cota, Chair 
  
2. Non-Agenda Public Comments 
 
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items of interest within the jurisdiction of 
the Board that are not on the posted agenda.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, no discussion or action shall be taken by the Board on items not posted 
on the agenda.  
 
3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items  
 
 Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of Board Meetings of June 28, 2023 and July 12, 2023 
 

Action Item(s): 
 

B. Budget Committee ( Shawn VanDiver) 
 
(1) Acceptance of Financial Report from Chief Financial Officer 

 
(2) Authorize Purchase of Kitchen Equipment 

 
(3) Authorize Contract for Kitchen Construction 

 
(4) Authorize Contract for Central Plant Design 

 
C. Sales & Marketing Committee (Jeff Gattas) 

                             
4. President’s Report (Rip Rippetoe)  
 
5.  Chair’s Report (Carlos Cota) 
 
6. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a)(2)] 



 
 
SDCCC Board of Directors 
August 23, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
7.  Urgent non-agenda items (must meet the requirements of Government Code, Section 54954.2) 
 
8.   Closed Session 

 
A. CONFERENCE WCONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--

ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2):   (1 case) 
Facts and circumstances pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(1) 

 
Adjournment 
 

This information is available in alternative formats upon request.  To request an agenda in an alternative format, or to request a sign 
language, oral interpreter, an Assistive Listening Devise (“ALD”), or other reasonable accommodation for the meeting, please call Pat Evans 
at (619) 525-5131 at least two working days prior to the meeting to ensure availability.  Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are 
available upon request. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy. 
 
In compliance with Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt written material that is distributed to the Board prior to the meeting will 
be available at the meeting or it may be viewed in advance of the meeting online at visitsandiego.com.  Materials distributed to the board 
after the posting of this agenda also will be available.  Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com if you 
would like to receive a copy of any material related to an item on this agenda. 
 
Action items on this agenda may be consolidated for voting purposes into a single vote of the Board, to the extent they are routine or 
otherwise do not require further deliberation. A Board member may comment on an action item before it is voted upon as part of the 
consolidated vote; however, if a Board member wishes to discuss an action item, that item will not be included in the consolidated 
vote. If a member of the public wishes to comment upon an action item, they should so advise the Board chair at or before the public 
comment portion of the meeting, in which case that item will not be included in any consolidated vote.   

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/kTDFC9rpq2FkgPr8soRSeV?domain=1.next.westlaw.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/kTDFC9rpq2FkgPr8soRSeV?domain=1.next.westlaw.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/kTDFC9rpq2FkgPr8soRSeV?domain=1.next.westlaw.com


 

1 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 3.A  
 
 

MINUTES* 
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 28, 2023 
     

BOARD MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

Chair Carlos Cota and Directors  Jeff Gattas, Shawn VanDiver, 
Jaymie Bradford, Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Alyssa Turowski 
and Carol Kim 

BOARD MEMBER(S) 
ABSENT: 
 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Rip Rippetoe, Mardeen Mattix, Corey Albright, Andy Mikschl, 
Michael Milligan, Victoria Mitchell, and Pat Evans (Recorder) 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Jennifer Lyon, General Counsel  
 

*Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are available upon request. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or 
pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy. 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chair Carlos Cota called the Board Meeting to order at 12:02 p.m. in the Executive 
Boardroom of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San 
Diego, CA 92101.   
 
Chair Cota then called roll to determine which Directors were present: 
 
Director Cota – Present 
Director Gattas – Present 
Director VanDiver - Present 
Director Bradford – Present 
Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Present 
Director Turowski– Present 
Director Kim – Present 
 
All Directors were recorded as present, and Chair Cota noted that all votes taken during 
this meeting would be recorded via roll call vote. 

  
  



 

2 
 

2. Non-Agenda Public Comment – Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public 
wished to comment on any non-Agenda items. 
 
Ms. Lori Saldaňa submitted a speaker’s slip requesting an opportunity to address the Board 
regarding Agenda Item (2), and she was granted an opportunity to address her comments 
to the Board. 
 

 3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items:   
 

 Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of Board Meetings of April 26, 2023, and June 16, 2023. 
 
Chair Cota inquired if any Director would like to pull a Consent Agenda item for 
discussion.  Hearing no request to pull a Consent Agenda item,  Chair Cota then inquired 
if any member of the public wished to comment on Agenda Item (3.A).  No members of 
the public responded to the request for comment. 

 
After request for Director discussion and for public comment, Directors VanDiver 
and Gattas moved and seconded, respectively, to approve the Consent Agenda as set 
forth hereinabove. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
Director Turowski – Aye 
Director Kim – Aye 

 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:  7         NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

  
Action Item(s): 
 

 
B. Executive Committee (Carlos Cota):  Chair Cota reported that staff would provide 

an update on the status of initiatives in the Strategic Plan previously approved by the 
Board.  No vote is required on this matter as this is an informational update. 

  
A. Strategic Plan Update 

 
Staff provided updates on the status of initiatives in the Strategic Plan which 
the Board approved in December 2022: 
 
Mr. Rippetoe stated that this is the quarterly report for the Corporation’s 
Strategic Plan.  The Board will note that there are quite a few items that have 
been completed.  The majority of the items are in process and are on time.  A 
few of the items have been de-prioritized based upon business needs or activity 



 

3 
 

and the KPI updates reflect that status.  Mr. Rippetoe invited the initiative 
“owners” to present their reports. 

• Grow and Nurture Culture – Michael Milligan  
 
Michael Milligan, Executive Director of Human Resources, reported: 
 

o The Corporation has made good progress and has been able to 
fill all of the open Human Resources positions including the 
Safety and Risk Manager, who started about six weeks ago. 

o The H.R. team has done a lot of hiring and they have increased 
the Corporation’s headcount from January 1st to the present by 
approximately 40%.  The Corporation is close to reaching pre-
pandemic staffing levels. 

o H.R. staff has also been able to hire new employees below the 
targeted time-to-hire period.  The hiring range has been reduced 
from 99 days to 84 days. 

o Staff is still experiencing challenges with turnover from 
employees who leave within the first three months on the job, 
and they are working on that issue. 

o Based on his experiences over the past year and current 
demands, Mr. Milligan has decided to make some adjustments 
to the “Grow and Nurture Culture” milestones. 

o H.R. has had to hire additional staff (on top of the 40% increase) 
to service the Comic-Con event (125 temporary workers).  H.R. 
has spent the past two and a half weeks hiring those workers and 
will spend the next three weeks onboarding the new temporary 
staff.  This issue has also contributed to the adjustments to the 
completion timeline for some of the KPIs. 

o The creation of the talent acquisition program will be moved 
from June of 2023 to September of 2023. 

o Due to the ripple effect caused by the delay of the talent 
acquisition program, the completion and implementation dates 
of the onboarding program, the safety orientation program, the 
performance management program, and the employee relations 
program have been revised as reflected in the chart. Staff hope 
to implement these initiatives within the next three months. 

o Of the seven union agreements subject to renegotiation, all have 
been completed except one.  The outstanding union agreement 
is not due for renewal/renegotiation until next year, but staff still 
hope to achieve renegotiation by the end of this year. 

 
• Develop a Facility Maintenance and Improvement Program – Corey 

Albright 
 
Corey Albright, Chief Operating Officer, reported: 
 

o Mr. Albright reported that the Facility Maintenance and 
Improvement Programs are on track. 



 

4 
 

o Mr. Albright had previously reported challenges hiring 
engineering staff; however, due to the efforts of the H.R. 
Department, a new Mechanical Engineer has started, and the 
Electrical Engineer is in the process of undergoing the 
background check phase of the hiring process.  Those two hires, 
when completed, will complete the personnel hiring phase of the 
program. 

o In April the Board approved the replacement of the 
Corporation’s work order system and staff anticipates the 
revamped system will go live towards the end of the year 
(October/November).  Once the system is in place, staff will be 
able to create a plan of active routine maintenance. 
 

• Refine Business Model to Ensure Financial Viability – Mardeen 
Mattix an Andy Mikschl 

 
Andy Mikschl, Executive VP Sales, reported: 
 

o Mr. Mikschl reported that refining the Corporation’s business 
model has been about targeting the right business as it moves 
forward to not only ensure that the Corporation is driving the 
appropriate room night goal for the destination, but also keeping 
a close eye on incremental revenues and making sure the 
business that is booked helps move the needle in that regard. 

o For FY 2024 the sales team is going to continue with some of 
the same initiatives in different ways; some of which include 
reviewing how business is negotiated, reviewing how the 
Corporation’s rental rates are set and how events are discounted.  
The team will look at increasing revenues in both event rents and 
food and beverage sold to increase commissions and to help 
internal partners grow their revenues. 

o A review of the food and beverage figures for FYs 2024 and 
2025 indicate a banner couple of years are developing and it 
reflects that the initiatives put in place to focus on that business 
is working. 

o Staff is also working to continually increase gross rental 
revenues and will be performing a competitive set rental study 
to ensure that rental increases are appropriate and meet the needs 
of our clients. 

 
 Mardeen Mattix:  Chief Financial Officer, reported: 
 

o The current marshalling yard lease has been extended for 
another two years while staff works with the City on identifying 
alternate properties and determining if properties that were 
identified 25 years ago are still viable and can be used for 
marshalling. 

o One property that is relatively close to the center has been 
identified and could potentially be used for marshalling, but if 
that property is not available, staff will have to identify other 



 

5 
 

potential land for lease or purchase.  The process should be 
completed within the next two years.   

o The primary financial focus has been on collaboration between 
the Corporation, SDTA, and the hotel community to find the 
right book of business and mix of business for San Diego as a 
whole while also trying to educate the community on how the 
Corporation functions differently than some entities in other 
cities. 
 

• Engage the Community – Maren Dougherty and Juan Reyes 
 
Maren Dougherty, Executive Director of Marketing and 
Communications, reported: 
 

o Ms. Dougherty noted that she and Mr. Reyes work very closely 
on this imperative and much of what they do is in support of the 
three preceding imperatives, but they remain focused on 
communicating the Corporation’s purpose, educating key 
stakeholders, and strengthening business community 
relationships.  

o In terms of the FY 2023 KPIs and milestones, the team has met 
or exceeded the items related to social media engagement, media 
coverage, and the presentations and collaborative events they 
participate in out in the community.  With social media, for 
example, they had 120% growth in engagement largely due to 
the full-scale return of Comic-Con plus all of the robust activity 
the Center has experienced over the past year. 

o With the volunteer events, the team has had the greatest 
participation in the Pride Parade with “Team Tourism,” but they 
continue to look for different ways that the Corporation can 
support the community and build partnerships. 

o For community presentations, those range from the public 
presentations staff does for City Council, the presentations that 
staff do for organizations like the Lead San Diego Program as 
well as ones that they do for local universities.  Much of what 
staff did over the past year was more reactive in nature, so part 
of what staff wants to do going forward for this coming year is 
to be more proactive and initiating presentations to reach our key 
stakeholders and build relationships across sectors. 

o The imperative that was de-prioritized for this section was to 
have 75% of leadership staff (directors and above) participating 
in civic/community/industry organization in support of our 
communications objectives.  The team reviewed our staff’s 
participation on Boards and committees and outside non-profits 
and found that 50% were participating on some level.  Since we 
didn’t have a baseline, we found that 75% was quite an 
ambitious goal, especially at a time when the Corporation was 
understaffed in a number of areas.  Asking leadership staff to 
commit to a 75% goal during this period of understaffing at the 
Corporation would have been an additional burden. 



 

6 
 

o The team ultimately decided that what they would focus on 
during the coming year would be to maintain the 50% 
participation level and make sure that the participation within 
the community organizations was as meaningful and deliberate 
as possible. 

o In FY 2024, the team would like to implement a digital asset 
management system.  Staff learned that within its photo and 
video archive, there are 47,000 photos and in order to clearly tell 
the Corporation’s story, support our clients and work with the 
Tourism Authority effectively, there needs to be a better way to 
accessing and sharing those assets. 

o The team has also added a metric of lighting the Sails Pavilion 
since we are one of a handful of truly iconic San Diego Buildings 
that light up in support of different causes.  We have received a 
lot of requests for Sails lightings, which are very meaningful to 
our community partners, so we are reviewing how we can build 
those requests into our calendar while still accommodating client 
requests. 

o Ms. Dougherty also discussed how the team introduces all levels 
of staff to organizations in which they can become active and 
fulfill civic engagement. 
 

Chair Cota thanked staff for engaging with the Strategic  Plan and taking it beyond 
what the initial efforts intended.  Chair Cota and Director Kim noted that the Plan is 
intended to continue to guide the Corporation’s actions over several years and it is not 
a one-off document.  The staff KPIs reflect their understanding of the document’s long-
term purpose. 

Ms. Saldaňa did not submit a speaker’s slip regarding Agenda Item B.1; however,  
Chair Cota allowed Ms. Saldaňa an opportunity to address her comments regarding this 
item to the Board. 

C. Budget Committee (Shawn VanDiver) 
 

(1) Acceptance of Financial Report from Chief Financial Officer 
 

o Ms. Mattix reported the May financial reports show the Corporation has a net 
operating income (surplus) of $4 million year to date.  That amount should remain 
the same through June. 

o Overall, Ms. Mattix expects that FY 2023 will have record-breaking revenues 
compared to  FY 2019 which was the Corporation’s prior record-breaking year.  
This does not mean, however, that income or net surplus is going to be record 
breaking because the monies have been reinvested in capital, and increased repair 
and maintenance items and there are higher staffing levels in some regards than the 
Corporation had in  FY 2019. 

o The revenue levels are exciting because staff was not expecting the events to 
rebound in the manner that they did, nor did they expect the new sales philosophy 
to impact revenues as quickly as it did. 

o The Corporation expects to break even this year or have a slight surplus ($500,000) 
at the end of next month.  That is phenomenal considering the Corporation budgeted 



 

7 
 

for a $7 million loss with all the capital reinvestment, the debt payment and all of 
the expenses. 

o Some of the savings is attributable to the roof project not being as far along as 
anticipated and the project was rescoped to include a possible solar component.  
The roof project should be completed as originally planned. 

o Some repair and maintenance projects have been delayed due to supply chain issues 
and other projects have been delayed due to windows of opportunity between 
events to perform the tasks.  These projects should be completed in the upcoming 
year. 

o Ms. Mattix welcomed Shannon Teem, the Corporation’s new Controller, and she 
also acknowledged that the Human Resources Department has done a great job at 
filling employee openings which is reflected on the employee expense line-item in 
the Corporation’s budget. 

 
After Ms. Mattix submitted her report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public 
wished to comment on Agenda Item 3.C.1.  No member of the public responded to the 
request for comment. 
 

After presentation by Staff, Directors Kim and Rodriguez-Kennedy moved and 
seconded, respectively,  to Accept the CFO Financial Report from the Chief Financial 
Officer. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous  
 
AYES:   7       NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 
 

(2)  Authorize Approval of Carpet Purchase and Installation Costs 
 

Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.C.2. 
 
Ms. Saldaňa did not submit a speaker’s slip regarding Agenda Item 3.C.2; however,  
Chair Cota allowed Ms. Saldaňa an opportunity to address her comments regarding 
this item to the Board. 

After presentations by Staff and public comment, Directors Kim and VanDiver 
moved and seconded, respectively, to Authorize Approval of Carpet Purchase and 
Installation Costs by awarding a contract to ProSpectra for exterior flooring 
installation at a cost of $270,980.   
 



 

8 
 

Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous  
 
AYES:   7        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 
 

(3) Authorize Ratification of Chiller Rental and Chiller Repair Costs 
 

Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.C.3. 
 
Ms. Lori Saldaňa submitted a speaker’s slip requesting an opportunity to address 
the Board regarding Agenda Item (3.C.3), and she was granted an opportunity to 
address her comments to the Board. 

 
After presentations by Staff and public comment, Directors Rodriguez-Kennedy and 
VanDiver moved and seconded, respectively, to authorize ratification of the chiller 
rental from United Rentals in the amount of $143,797.22 and to authorize ratification 
of the chiller repair by Trane in the amount of $61,112.70, inclusive of contingency. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:   7        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 
 

(4) Authorize Ratification of Rental Cost for Temporary Generator for 
Emergency Backup and Cost of West Generator Repair 

 
Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.C.4. 
 



 

9 
 

Ms. Lori Saldaňa submitted a speaker’s slip requesting an opportunity to address 
the Board regarding Agenda Item (3.C.4), and she was granted an opportunity to 
address her comments to the Board. 

 
After presentations by Staff and public comment, Directors Gattas and Rodriguez-
Kennedy moved and seconded, respectively, to authorize ratification of  a contract 
with Bay City Electric Works in the amount of $105,243.99 for the Rental Cost of a 
Temporary Generator for Emergency Backup and Cost of West Generator Repair. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:   7        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

 

D. Audit Committee (Will Rodriguez-Kennedy) 
 
(1) Authorize Acceptance of CY 2022 MPPP Audited Pension Financial 

Statements 
 

Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.D.1.  No member of the public responded to the request for 
comment. 

 
After presentations by Staff, Directors Rodriguez-Kennedy and Bradford moved and 
seconded, respectively, to authorize Acceptance of the CY 2022 MPPP Audited 
Pension Financial Statements. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:   7        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

  



 

10 
 

 

E. Sales & Marketing Committee (Jeff Gattas) 
 
(1) Authorization to Accept San Diego Tourism Authority Program of Work 

 
Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.D.1.  No member of the public responded to the request for 
comment. 

 
After presentations by Staff, Directors  Gattas and Bradford moved and seconded, 
respectively, to authorize Acceptance of the San Diego Tourism Authority Program 
of Work. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:   7        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

 
4.      President’s Report (Rip Rippetoe) – Mr. Rippetoe reported:  
 

• Mr. Rippetoe thanked the SDCCC team members, noting that they are all vital to 
the success of the organization. 

• Mr. Rippetoe also described the Corporation’s past and present efforts in the realm 
of sustainability, and he provided an update regarding industry developments and 
initiatives in various areas. 

• After Mr. Rippetoe submitted his report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the 
public wished to comment on Agenda Item 4.  No member of the public responded 
to the request for comment. 
 

5. Chair’s Report (Carlos Cota) – Chair Cota reported:  
o The next Board meeting is scheduled for July 12, 2023, at Noon.  We usually do 

not have a July Board meeting; however, this meeting is a special set to address 
uniform approval and other items. 

o Chair Cota also called Director’s attention to the newly installed mural display in 
the Boardroom. 
 

6. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a) (2)] –  None   
 



 

11 
 

7. Urgent non-agenda items (must meet the requirements of Government Code, Section 
54954.2):  None 

 
8.   Closed Session:  The Board entered into closed session at 1:26 p.m. to discuss the items 

set forth hereinbelow.  
  

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9 (d)(4)  
(2 cases) 
 

B. EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Government Code Section 54957 
Title:  President  & CEO 

 
The Board returned to open session at 2:15 p.m. 

 
Reporting out of closed session, General Counsel Lyon stated that the Board discussed items “8.A 
and 8.B,” and direction was given but no reportable action was taken. 
 
3. Action Item(s) Cont. 
 

F. Approval of a Resolution of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, Inc. 
Authorizing a One-Time Payment of a Retention Incentive Stipend to the 
President and CEO of the Corporation 

 
Chair Cota summarized this item as a Resolution that will authorize a one-time 
payment of compensation in the form of a stipend to the President & CEO.  Chair 
Cota called for an Ad Hoc Committee report regarding this item.  The Ad Hoc 
Committee did not submit a report.  Chair Cota then inquired if any member of the 
public wished to comment on Agenda Item 3.F.  No member of the public 
responded to the request for comment. 

 
Directors Gattas and Turowski moved and seconded, respectively, to Approve a 
Resolution of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, Inc. Authorizing a One-
Time Payment of a Retention Incentive Stipend to the President and CEO of the 
Corporation. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Aye 
Director Bradford – Absent 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
 Director Turowski – Aye 
 Director Kim – Absent 
 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:   5        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0  



 

12 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:16 p.m. 
 

I, Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the San Diego 
Convention Center Corporation, Inc., do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes of the business transacted by the Board of Directors of the San Diego Convention 
Center Corporation, Inc., at a duly noticed meeting held on June 28, 2023, and that said minutes 
were approved by the Board of Directors on August 23, 2023. 

     
____________________________________ 
Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary  



 

1 
 

Agenda Item 3.A  
 

MINUTES* 
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF JULY 12, 2023 
     

BOARD MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

Chair Carlos Cota and Directors Jeff Gattas, Will Rodriguez-
Kennedy, Jaymie Bradford and Alyssa Turowski 
  
 

BOARD MEMBER(S) 
ABSENT: 
 

 
Directors Shawn VanDiver and Carol Kim 

STAFF PRESENT: Rip Rippetoe, Mardeen Mattix, Corey Albright, Victoria Mitchell 
and Pat Evans (Recorder) 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Jennifer Lyon, General Counsel 
*Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are available upon request. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or 
pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy. 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chair  Carlos Cota called the Board Meeting to order at 12:12 a.m. in the Executive 
Boardroom of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San 
Diego, CA 92101.  Chair Cota then called roll to determine which Directors were present 
on site: 
 
Director Cota – Present 
Director Gattas –  Present 
Director VanDiver – Absent 
Director Bradford –  Present 
Director Rodriguez-Kennedy - Present 
Director Turowski – Present 
Director Kim – Absent 
 
All Directors were recorded as present except Director VanDiver and Director Kim.   
 

2. Non-Agenda Public Comments: –  Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public 
wished to comment on any non-Agenda item.  No members of the public responded to the 
request for comment. 

  



 

2 
 

3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items 
 

A. Authorization to Contract for Fire Alarm Inspections 
 

Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its report, 
Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on Agenda Item 3.A.  
No members of the public responded to the request for comment. 
 
After presentations by staff, and request for public comment, Directors Gattas and 
Rodriguez-Kennedy moved and seconded, respectively, to (1) Authorize award of a 
Contract to Sygnal Systems for six (6) of the required services with a 3-year 
commitment of $327,944.49 ($563,299.31 with both extension options) and (2) 
Authorize award of a Contract to Johnson Controls for six (6) of the required services 
with a 3-year commitment of $188,661.36 ($330,681.40 with both extension options). 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Absent 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
Director Turowski – Aye 
Director Kim – Absent 

 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:  5            NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

 

4. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a) (2)] –  None   
 
5. Urgent non-agenda items (must meet the requirements of Government Code, Section 

54954.2):  None 
 
6. Closed Session:  The Board entered into closed session at 12:17 p.m. to discuss the items 

set forth below.  
 

A. EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Government Code Section 54957 
Title:  President  & CEO 

 
The Board returned to open session at 1:12 p.m. 

 
  



 

3 
 

Reporting out of closed session, General Counsel Lyon stated that the Board discussed Agenda 
Item “6” and direction was given, but no reportable action was taken.  

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:13 p.m. 
 

I, Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the San Diego 
Convention Center Corporation, Inc., do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes of the business transacted by the Board of Directors of the San Diego Convention 
Center Corporation, Inc., at a duly noticed meeting held on July 12, 2023, and that said minutes 
were approved by the Board of Directors on August 23, 2023. 

     
______________________________________ 
Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary 

 
 



Agenda Item 3.B.2 and 3.B.3 
 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Shawn VanDiver, Budget Chair 
  
DATE: For the Agenda of August 23, 2023 
 
RE: Authorize Purchase West Kitchen Equipment  
 Authorize Contract for West Kitchen Construction 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Diego Convention Center features two primary kitchens to support food and beverage 
operations. Currently, the east kitchen is the only full-service kitchen. The west kitchen is 
beyond its useful life, requires code compliance updates, and is restricted to limited use until 
modernized. In October 2022, Staff engaged Lahaina Architects to redesign the west kitchen to 
become a full-service kitchen.  
 
The west kitchen remodel project is budgeted for $4,200,000 comprised of $200,000 for design 
and engineering services and in the FY24 CIP budget $2,000,000 allocated for equipment 
purchase and an additional $2,000,000 for remodel construction. 
 
DISCUSSION – AGENDA ITEM 3.B.2 WEST KITCHEN EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 
 
Staff issued a request for proposals with the specified kitchen equipment list. Staff received two 
(2) proposals: 
 

Bidder Cost 

Economy Restaurant Equipment & Supply Co. $2,141,848.87 

San Diego Restaurant Supply $1,823,311.38 

 
Bidder evaluation was based on a best value determination using the following criteria: Cost 
80%, Comparable Accounts 10%, and Lead Times 10%. An evaluation committee was formed 
and determined San Diego Restaurant Supply to be the best value vendor.  
 
Staff recommends awarding a purchase order to San Diego Restaurant Supply with a not to 
exceed budget of $2,005,642.52, inclusive of a 10% contingency allowance. 



Board of Directors 
Agenda Item 3.B.2 and 3.B.3 
August 23, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
DISCUSSION – AGENDA ITEM 3.B.3 WEST KITCHEN CONSTRUCTION 
 
Staff issued a request for proposals from qualified contractors to provide construction services to 
remodel the west kitchen. Staff received three (3) proposals: 
 

Bidder Cost 

Costa Azul Contracting Group $2,500,000.00 

Iconik Builders Inc. $2,226,742.10 

RORE, Inc. $3,362,921.00 
  
Bidder evaluation was based on a best value determination using the following criteria: Cost 
40%, Comparable Projects 15%, Project Schedule & Methodology 15%, Company Resume 10%, 
Safety Record 5%, Terms & Conditions and Proposal Completion 5%, and Shortlist Interview 
10% (if shortlisted). An evaluation committee was formed and determined Costa Azul 
Contracting Group to be the best value contractor. 
 
Staff recommends awarding a contract to Costa Azul Contracting Group with a not to exceed 
project budget of $2,754,000.00, inclusive of an additional $40,000.00 for equipment not 
fulfilled in the equipment purchase above and a 10% contingency allowance for unforeseen 
conditions. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Item 3.B.2: Authorize purchase of west kitchen equipment from San Diego Restaurant Supply 
via purchase order with a budget not to exceed $2,005,642.52. 
 
Item 3.B.3:Authorize contract award to Costa Azul Contracting Group for west kitchen 
construction with a budget not to exceed $2,754,000.00. 
 
 
__/s/_______________________ 
Shawn Vandiver 
Budget Chair 



Agenda Item 3.B.4 
 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Shawn VanDiver, Budget Chair 
  
DATE: For the Agenda of August 23, 2023 
 
RE: Authorize Contract for Central Plant Design 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Diego Convention Center’s central plant is responsible for maintaining heating, 
ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to provide thermal comfort to all occupants 
and support necessary building infrastructure. The central plant is comprised of boilers, chillers, 
cooling towers, water heaters, and various pumps, tanks, and equipment. Most of the central 
plant is already at, or nearing, the end of useful life expectancy. 
 
The central plant overhaul project was anticipated in the CIP budget for $10,000,000 comprised 
of $1,000,000 in FY25 for design and engineering and the resulting work taking place in FY26 
for an additional $9,000,000.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Due to reliability issues with our current central plant equipment, lack of parts availability, and 
10+ month long lead time quotes for replacement equipment, Staff recommends expediting the 
$1,000,000 allocated for central plant design and engineering from FY25 to FY24. Expediting 
the design and engineering will allow Staff to better plan for the resulting work and mitigate 
impacts to event activity. The $9,000,000 for the resulting work is anticipated to remain in FY26. 
 
Staff issued a request for proposals from qualified firms to conduct design and engineering 
services to redesign the central plant. Staff received six (6) proposals: 
 

Bidder Cost 

Bender Dean $761,202.50 

HMC Architects $2,038,000.00 

MA Engineering $481,550.00 

ME Engineers $877,500.00 

P2S $1,457,700.00 

SC Engineers $1,055,550.00 

  



Board of Directors 
Agenda Item 3.B.4 
August 23, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Bidder evaluation was based on a best value determination using the following criteria: Price 
40%, Comparable Projects 20%, Sample Work Product 10%, Proposed Project Schedule & 
Methodology 10%, Company Resume 10%, and Shortlist Interview (if shortlisted) 10%. An 
evaluation committee was formed and determined SC Engineers to be the best value firm. 
 
Staff recommends awarding a contract to SC Engineers with a not to exceed project budget of 
$1,161,105.00, inclusive of a 10% contingency allowance for unforeseen conditions. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize contract award to SC Engineers for central plant redesign with a budget not to exceed 
$1,161,105.00. 
 
 
___/s/______________________ 
Shawn VanDiver 
Budget Chair 



   

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales July 2023 Sales Activity Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT:  Andy Mikschl, Executive Vice President, Sales, San Diego Convention Center 
         Andy.mikschl@visitsandiego.com I 111 West Harbor Dr., San Diego, CA  92101 
         619.525.5282 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER/ SHORT TERM SALES 

 JULY 2023 SALES ACTIVITY REPORT 

SHORT TERM BOOKING ACTIVITY 
Conventions, Corporate Events, Consumer Shows, Community Events, & Local Meetings 

FY24 PERCENT TO GOAL  
Convention Center Rental Revenue 

 
FY24 

 JULY 23 
FY23 

JULY 22 
CUMULATIVE 

FYTD 2024 
CUMULATIVE 

FYTD 2023 

D
EFIN

ITE
 

EVENTS 4 6 4 6 

ATTENDANCE 103,200 10,214 103,200 10,214 

ROOM NIGHTS 1,900 1,200 1,900 1,200 

RENTAL REVENUE $232,190 $161,950 $232,190 $161,950 

 GOAL YTD PERCENT TO GOAL 

CONTRACTED RENTAL REVENUE $1,500,000 232,190 15.5 

Agenda Item 3.C



 2 

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales July 2023 Sales Activity Report 

CONTRACTED SHORT TERM EVENTS/ JULY 2023 

EVENT NAME 
EVENT 
DATES 

PROJECTED     
ATTENDANCE 

PEAK ROOMS ROOM NIGHTS RENTAL  

San Diego International Auto Show 2023 12/29/23 100,000 200 800  $194,400  

West Coast Conference Cheer & Dance  2023 10/29/23 2,500 0 0  $10,400  

AGWest Board Meeting & LAC Orientation 02/07/24 100 350 800  $6,600  

LSX RNA Leaders USA Congress 2024 09/04/24 600 150 300  $20,790  

TOTAL     103,200  1,900 232,190 



 3 

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales July 2023 Sales Activity Report 

CONTRACTED SHORT TERM EVENTS/ FY24 YTD                                                  

EVENT NAME 
EVENT 
DATES 

PROJECTED 
ATTENDANCE 

PEAK 
ROOMS 

ROOM 
NIGHTS 

RENTAL  

San Diego International Auto Show 2023 12/29/23 100,000 200 800  $194,400  

West Coast Conference Cheer & Dance  2023 10/29/23 2,500 0 0  $10,400  

AGWest Board Meeting & LAC Orientation 02/07/24 100 350 800  $6,600  

LSX RNA Leaders USA Congress 2024 09/04/24 600 150 300  $20,790  

TOTAL     103,200  1,900 $232,190 



San Diego Citywide Sales OCTOBER 2022 Sales Activity Report 

 

  

CITYWIDE PRIMARY MARKET 
Conventions, Trade Shows, Corporate & Incentive Events 

  

D
EFIN

ITE 

FUTURE YR 
BOOKINGS 

JULY 
2023 

JULY 
2022 

JULY 
2018 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2024 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2023 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2019 

CONVENTIONS 1 1 7 1 1 7 

ATTENDANCE 1,800 8,000 42,200 1,800 8,000 42,200 

ROOM NIGHTS 4,373 16,050 66,382 4,373 16,050 66,382 

 
  

TEN
TA

TIV
E 

FUTURE YR 
BOOKINGS 

JULY 
2023 

JULY 
2022 

JULY 
2018 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2024 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2023 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2019 

BOOKINGS 27 4 8 27 4 8 

ATTENDANCE 324,800 48,000 44,700 324,800 48,000 44,700 

ROOM NIGHTS 557,248 80,993 83,832 557,248 80,993 83,832 

 
 

 
CUMULATIVE FY2024 CUMULATIVE FY2023 CUMULATIVE FY2019 

DEFINITE TOTAL ROOM NIGHTS 
VARIANCE COMPARED TO FY2019 

4,373 

-62,009 

16,050 

-50,332 

66,382 

TENTATIVE TOTAL ROOM NIGHTS 
VARIANCE COMPARED TO FY2019 

557,248 

+473,416 

80,993 

-2,839 

 

83,832 

 

DEFINITE EVENTS BREAKDOWN 

Conventions, Trade Shows, Corporate & Incentive Events booked in July 2023 
 

Account Name 
National Sales 

Director 
Event Begin 

Date 
Event End 

Date 
Room 
Nights 

Peak 
Room 
Nights 

Estimated 
Attendance SDCCC ID # 

SDTA ID 
# 

Gypsum Management & 
Supply, Inc. 

Dave Matta 09/10/2025 9/11/2025 
4,373 1,500 1,800 

2829-65-65-
4035 

1227816 

Total       4,373 1,500 1,800   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SAN DIEGO CITYWIDE SALES 

JULY 2023 SALES ACTIVITY REPORT 

Agenda Item 3.C



 
 

 
 
NOTE: 

• 2025 Definite Total Room Night Changes: +4,373 New Definite Group (GMS)  

3 San Diego Citywide Sales July 2023 Sales Activity Report 


	Board -Agenda-8-23-23
	(3A) Board Minutes June-28-23
	(3A) Board-Spec-Meeting-Minutes-7-12-23
	(3B2-3) Memo re West Kitchen
	SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
	M E M O R A N D U M
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION – AGENDA ITEM 3.B.2 WEST KITCHEN EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
	DISCUSSION – AGENDA ITEM 3.B.3 WEST KITCHEN CONSTRUCTION
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	(3B4) Memo re Central Plant Design
	SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
	M E M O R A N D U M
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	FY 24 Short Term Sales Report July 23 (1)
	SAR July 2023 (1)



